
Agenda for February 10, 2026, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting    Page 1 of 3 

 
Posted at Town Hall, 175 E. 3rd Street, and the Palisade Civic Center, 341 West 7th Street 

On or Before February 6, 2026 

 

 

AGENDA 
for the Board of Trustees 

of the Town of Palisade, Colorado 

341 W 7th Street (Palisade Civic Center BOARD ROOM) 
 

February 10, 2026 
 

6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
A live stream of the meeting may be viewed at:  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/3320075780 

 
I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:00 pm 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

III. ROLL CALL 

 

IV. AGENDA ADOPTION 

 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. GET INVOLVED WITH OUR COMMUNITY! UPCOMING PUBLIC MEETINGS 

(Palisade Civic Center, 341 W 7th Street): 

1. Planning Commission – Tuesday, February 17, 2026, at 6:00 pm 

2. Tourism Advisory Commission – Wednesday, February 18, at 9:00 am 

3. Board of Trustees – Tuesday, February 24, 2026, at 6:00 pm 

 

B. TOWN HALL WILL BE CLOSED Monday, February 16, 2026, in observance of 

Presidents’ Day.  

 

C. ELECTION ANNOUNCEMENT: CANDIDATE FORUM – The Palisade Chamber of 

Commerce is hosting the 2026 Board of Trustees Candidate Forum on Thursday, 

February 26, 2026, at the Palisade High School auditorium (3679 G Road) at 6:00 pm. 

All Town of Palisade voters are encouraged to attend to learn more about the candidates 

running for office. 

 

D. ELECTION ANNOUNCEMENT: CANDIDATE MEET & GREET – The Town of 

Palisade is hosting the 2026 Board of Trustees Candidate Meet & Greet on Thursday, 

March 5, 2026, at the Historic Palisade Gymnasium (711 Iowa Avenue) from 5:30 pm 

to 7:00 pm. All Town of Palisade voters are encouraged to attend this informal gathering 

to meet the candidates and learn more about them. 

 

VI. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

A. PlacerAI Events Update 

 

 

 

 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/3320075780


Agenda for February 10, 2026, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting  Page 2 of 3 

Posted at Town Hall, 175 E. 3rd Street, and the Palisade Civic Center, 341 West 7th Street 
On or Before February 6, 2026 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA

The Consent Agenda is intended to allow the Board to spend its time on more complex items. 
These items are generally perceived as non-controversial and can be approved by a single 
motion.  The public or any Board Member may ask that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for individual consideration.

A. Expenditures

• Approval of Bills from Various Town Funds – January 14, 2026 – January 27, 2026

B. Minutes

• Minutes from January 27, 2026, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING I

A. ORDINANCE 2026-01 – Adoption of the International Fire Code

The Board of Trustees will consider ORDINANCE 2026-01, adopting the 2024 
International Fire Code.

1. Staff Presentation

2. Public Comment

3. Board Discussion

4. Decision: Motion, Second, and Rollcall Vote to: Approve Ordinance 2026-01 
adopting the 2024 International Fire Code by reference.

IX. NEW BUSINESS

A. RESOLUTION 2026-03 Supporting a 250/150 Grant for Roundabout Center 
Artwork

The Board of Trustees will consider RESOLUTION 2026-03 Supporting a 250/150 Grant 
for new artwork for the center of the Elberta/Highway 6 roundabout.

1. Staff Presentation

2. Board Discussion

3. Decision: Motion, Second, and Rollcall Vote to: Approve RESOLUTION 

2026-03 Giving Direction to the Town Manager to submit a grant for 

“placemaking” in the roundabout for $85,000, with the match being in-kind of 

the Town’s current financial commitment to this project, including bike lane 

delineators, landscape, and street lights in the roundabout.

X. PUBLIC COMMENT

All those who wish to speak during public comment must sign up on the sheet provided 
outside the boardroom doors. Please keep comments to 3 MINUTES OR LESS and state 
your name and address. Neither the Board of Trustees nor staff will respond to comments at this 
time. The Board may direct staff to look into specific comments to bring back as an Agenda item 
at a future meeting; however, the Board reserves the right to clarify information from comments 
that are factually incorrect.

All emails sent to the Town Clerk for public comment will be forwarded to the Board of Trustees. 
Any member of the public who wishes to have a statement or email read to the Board of Trustees 
is required to appear in person and make said statements to the Board directly.

XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS



Agenda for February 10, 2026, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting    Page 3 of 3 

 
Posted at Town Hall, 175 E. 3rd Street, and the Palisade Civic Center, 341 West 7th Street 

On or Before February 6, 2026 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 



Town Manager Report    Capital Construction Project List Updates 2.10.2026 

 

Wastewater Consolidation to Clifton Sanitation District             Construction  Estimate:  $12 M 

• Phase of Project:  Bids for Construction due February 18, 2026 

 

Roundabout Highway 6 – CDOT       Town:  $400,000           CDOT $15M 

• The project started in January 2026. Estimated Completion 1/2027 

• This is a CDOT project – the Town is participating with bike delineators, landscaping, 

street lighting, and roundabout interior signage/art? 

• The Town is using dark sky solar lights at the intersection. 

 

Multi-Modal Path for West Side of  Elberta                                    Grant with CDOT            $1.8 M 

• The path is from 1st Street to Wine Valley Road. Includes new pedestrian bridges over the 

canal. 

• The Town began easement acquisition in January 2026 

• Estimate construction to begin in Fall 2026. 

 

Riverbend Park Boat Launch Safety Improvements__________       __         Town  $125,000 

• Town Staff is currently constructing safety improvements, grading, and terracing for 

improved access to the Colorado River.   

• Lowering the grade of the boat launch towards the river for safer access. 

• Expected to be completed by Spring.  

 

Peach Bowl Park & Pool Planning_____     Colorado Health Foundation  Grant            $50,000 

• The Town awarded a planning grant for upgrades to Peach Bowl Park & Pool.   

• Planning Palooza was held—presentation on input to be presented in upcoming meetings. 

 

Sewer Lagoon Reclamation Planning          CO Parks & Wildlife Grant        $80,000 

• The Town awarded a planning grant for future use of the sewer lagoon area.   

• Planning Documents:  $50,000 from CPW Grant 2025 

• Palisade to match $20,000 cash, Ducks Unlimited match $10,000 in-kind (for engineering staff on 

plans), and Rivers Edge West $1,000 in-kind  (for public engagement) 



K-9 Unit Police Department         Federal Mineral Grant     $48,000 

• Training begins in June, when school is out. Grant is for a K-9 dog & training.   

• In-kind match by the Town for personnel, vehicle, and support of the unit. 

 

Land Use Code Update      DOLA grant $20,000              Total $40,000 

• Grant Complete – Project finishing with updated Zoning Map approval this winter. 

 

Pretreatment Wastewater Program Implementation        

• The Town is focusing on the pretreatment wastewater program. This has been a multi-year 

project. Pretreatment means adding tanks to sewer systems to trap waste that is not wanted 

in collection pipes or wastewater treatment plants. 

• The Town, with assistance from Clifton Sanitation District, has completed surveying 

businesses that need pretreatment tanks. Currently, there are fewer than 15 businesses in the 

historic old town area that need tanks. The Town is working with owners to solve 

installation and cost. 

• New businesses have installed the pretreatment tanks & program. 

 

 

 

 

Town Assets for Future Work: 

 

Irrigation in Palisade             $? 

• Complete mapping – create fund and rates, and build out a plan 

• Confirm Water Rights 

 

 

Veterans Memorial Center                                   $? 

• Building inspections to determine the structure's condition are complete. 

• The building has structural support beam weaknesses and other issues; authorities 

have condemned it for safety reasons. 

• Undetermined to remodel the building or remove and build new, or something else. 



PALISADE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date:  February 10, 2026 

 

Presented Under:  Town Manager Report 

 

Department:   Community Development Department and Events Department 

 

Re:    2025 Events & Festivals Visitor Data 

 

SUBJECT:  

Data from 2025 special events was collected using Placer.ai, a service that helps communities 

understand how many people visit specific areas and where those visitors come from. 

This information helps the Town understand: 

• How many people attend our events 

• How long visitors stay 

• Where visitors are coming from 

• How event attendance changes year over year 

A presentation including the detailed data collected will be provided to the Board of Trustees 

at the meeting.  



Frequently Asked Questions 

What is Placer.ai? 

Placer.ai is a data analytics company that tracks visitor patterns using anonymized mobile device 

data. They help cities and businesses understand foot traffic and visitor trends without collecting any 

personal information. 

What are "Panel Visits"? 

Panel visits represent the actual number of unique mobile devices detected in the event area that 

Placer.ai's system captured. This is a sample of total visitors. Any panel over 50 is statistically 

relevant.  

Think of it like a survey: if you poll 100 people out of 1,000, those 100 people are your "panel." 

Placer.ai uses statistical methods to estimate total attendance based on this panel. 

What are "Visits"? 

Visits are the estimated total number of people who came to the event area. This number is 

calculated by taking the panel visits and projecting it to represent the full population, similar to how 

election polls work. 

What is "Average Dwell Time"? 

Average dwell time is how long, on average, visitors stayed in the event area. For example, an 

average dwell time of 82 minutes means most people spent about an hour and 20 minutes at the 

event. 

What does "Visits YoY" mean? 

YoY stands for "Year over Year." This shows how attendance changed compared to the same event 

in previous years. For example, "+105.4%" means attendance more than doubled compared to the 

previous year. 

Where does "Visitors By Origin" data come from? 

This data shows which counties or cities visitors traveled from to attend the event. It's based on 

where devices are typically located (home address area) compared to where they appeared during the 

event. 

Is this data private and secure? 

Yes. Placer.ai uses only anonymized, aggregated data. No personal information, names, phone 

numbers, or individual location histories are collected or shared. The data meets privacy standards 

and regulations including GDPR and CCPA. 

 



PALISADE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Meeting Date: 

Re: 

February 10, 2026

Consent Agenda 

The Consent Agenda has been attached as a separate document for ease of reading. 

Included in the consent agenda are: 

A. Expenditures
• Approval of Bills from Various Town Funds – January 14, 2026 - January 27, 2026

B. Minutes
• Minutes from January 27, 2026, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting



PALISADE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2026 

Presented By:  Town Clerk 

Department: Fire 

Re: ORDINANCE 2026-01 

SUBJECT: 

This is the SECOND READING and Public Hearing to approve Ordinance 2026-01 adopting the 2024 

International Fire Code. 

SUMMARY: 

C.R.S. §31-16-201, et seq., governs the adoption of codes by reference and includes specific public

notice requirements, introduction of the ordinance by the Board of Trustees, which is occurring on

first reading, and then a public hearing, which will occur on second reading on February 10, 2026.

Staff as complied with these public notice requirements.

• January 13, 2026 FIRST READING/Order to Publish

• January 24, 2026 First Publication in GJ Sentinel

• January 31, 2026 Second Publication in GJ Sentinel

• February 10, 2026 SECOND READING/Adoption

BOARD DIRECTION: 

Approve Ordinance 2026-01 adopting the 2024 International Fire Code. 



PUBLIC NOTICE 

Public notice is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Town 
of Palisade,-Colorado,-to be held on February -10, 2026, at 6:00 p;m. at-the Palisade Civic Center, 
341 W. 7th Str.e_e.t, Palisad_e, Colorado, the Board will hold a public hearing to consider .an 
Ordinance entitled: 

AN ORD
I

NANCE OF THE TOWN OF PALISADE. COLORADO. ADOPTING 
AND AMENDING THE LATEST EDITION OF THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE 
_CODE; REPE�LING ALL O_RD��NCES OF THE TqWN QF P ����ADE_1_ IN 
CONFLICT OR INCONSISTENT HEREWITH; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR 
VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF THESE PRIMARY CODES; AND
PROVIDING-FOR THE-EFFECTIVEDATEOF THI8-0RDINANCE AND THE 
CODES ADOPTED HEREIN BY REFERENCE. 

The "International Fire Code", 2024 Edition, is published by the International Code Council, 500 
New Jersey Avenue, NW, 6th Floor, WashingtonD.C. 20001, to provide regulations-to safeguard 
life and property from fires and explosion hazards, including general precautions, emergency 
planning and preparedness, fire department access and water supplies, automatic sprinkler 
systems, fire alarm systems, special hazards, and the storage and use of hazardous materials." 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Ordinance to be considered at said public hearing also 
contains proposed amendments to the primary code to be adopted by reference, provides for 
penalties for violations of the provisions of the primary code in said Ordinance, provides for the 
maintenance of official copies of such code, provides for the sale of copies of such code-, provides 
for-repeal of certain existing Town ordinances, and provides for the effective date of the-Ordinance 
t.o be c.onsidcered ats_aid pub.lie hearing. 

PLEASE FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that-cop-ies-of the primary -code being conside-re-d for 
adoption, and copies of the proposed ordinance adopting said code, are on file with the Palisade 
Town Clerk and are available for public inspection during regular business .hours .at the Palisade 
Town Hall, 175 East Third Street, Palisade, Colorado 81526. Any questions concerning the 
proposed Ordinance before the Board of Trustees of the Town-0f Palisade, C-0lorado, or-questions 
concerning the primary codes being considered for adoption may be directed to Town Hall fa 
person or by telephone at (970) 464�5602. 

TOWN OF PALISADE, COLORADO 

Pub1ished January 24, 2026, and January 31, 2026, in the Grand Junction Daily Sentinel 



�Colutnn 

INTERIM AD DRAFT 

This is the proof of your ad scheduled to run in Grand Junction Daily Sentinel on the dates 

indicated b elow. If changes are needed, please contact us prior to deadline at (970) 242-1313. 

Notice ID: MIZ6hs8nhOEzjLN6Uagv I Proof Updated: Jan. 08, 2026 at 10:56am MST
Notice Name: PH NOTICE: Ord 2026-01 Fire Code 

This is not an invoice. Below is an estimated price, and it is 

subject to change. You will receive an invoice with the final 

price upon invoice creation by the publisher. 

FILER 

Town of Palisade Frasier 

kfrasier@townofpalisade.org 

(970) 464-5602

FILING FOR 

Grand Junction Daily Sentinel 

Columns Wide: 2 Ad Class: Legals 

Total Column Inches: 6.46 

Number of Lines: 38 

01/24/2026: General Legal 

01/31/2026: General Legal 

Subtotal 

Tax 

Processing Fee 

Total 

28.88 

28.88 

$57.76 

$0.00 

$5.78 

$63.54 

See Proof on Next Page 

PH NOTICE: Ord 2026-01 Fire Code - Page 1 of 2 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC H!ARING PALISADE, COLORADO 
Public nollae Is hereby given that al a regular meeting of U1a liloard of 1\'Ustaes of the 
Town of Palisade, Cororado, to be held on Febnlarv 10, 20211, al 6:00 �.in. al the 
Pallsada CMc center, 341 w. 7th street, Palisade, Co!oraao, the Board wm hotel a 
public hearing to consleler an Ordinance entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PALISADE, COLORADO, ADOPTING AND 
AMENDING THE! LATEST EDITION OF THE INTE!FINATIONAL Flf\E CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES.OF THE TOWN OF PALISADE, IN CONFLICT 
OR INCONSISTENT HEREWITH; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF 
THE PROVISIONS OF THESE PRIMARY CODES; ANO PROVIDING FOR THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE AND THE CODES ADOPTED HEREIN BY 
REFERENCE. 

The •tntemallonal Fire Code", 2024 Edltlon, Is published lntemallolll!I Qode 
Council, 500 New Jersey Avenue, NW, 6th Floor, Wash! 20001, to pn;vl(l9 
regulations lo salegualll Ille and property from fires and . hazards, Including 
general preceuttons, emergency planning and preparedness, flre department access 
and water supplies, automatic sprinkler systems, fire alarm systems, special hazards, 
and the storage and use of hazardous materials." 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Ordinance lo be considered at said public heartng 
also contains proposed amendment& to the primary code to be adopted by reference, 
provides for penalties for Vlolat!ons of the provisions ollhe prtma code In said Ordl­
nance, provides ll>r the maintenance of Official copies of sue 
sale oh:oples of suchcode,-provldesfor repeal ofceltaln eld 
aml provJOes for the ellecl!Ve (late ct the Ordinance to be co 
hearing. 

PLEASE FURTHER TAKE NOTICE that coirtes of the prlf!lSIYCod& being conslelered 
for adoption, and copies of the proposed ordinance adqptlng said code, are on tile 
with the Pall,sade Town Cle.rkand are avallable for public lnspectton dunng regular 

rs at the PallSade 'lbwn Hall, 175 East Tlilm Street, Pai!Sade, Co!<,rado 
estionsooncernlng the proposed Ordinance before the Board cf Trust­

wn of Palll!ade, COiorado, or quesUons concerning the primary co.des 
being oonsldersd for adoption may be directed to Town Hall In person or by telephone 
at (970) 44!4-5602. 
PUbUsfied: January 24, 31, 2026. ##-

PH NOTICE: Ord 2026-01 Fire Code - Page 2 of 2 



TOWN OF PALISADE, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 2026-01 

  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PALISADE, COLORADO, 

ADOPTING AND AMENDING THE LATEST EDITION OF THE 

INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OF 

THE TOWN OF PALISADE, IN CONFLICT OR INCONSISTENT 

HEREWITH, INCLUDING ARTICLE XI OF CHAPTER 18 OF THE 

PALISADE MUNICIPAL CODE; PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR 

VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PRIMARY CODE; AND 

PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE AND 

THE CODE ADOPTED HEREIN BY REFERENCE. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 31-16-201 et seq., the Palisade Board of Trustees has the 

power to adopt ordinances which adopt uniform codes by reference; and 

 

      WHEREAS, the Palisade Board of Trustees finds that it is important for the safety of the 

citizens of the Town of Palisade to have a current uniform fire code and that it is necessary to adopt 

and amend the 2024 International Fire Code to be applied throughout the Town of Palisade 

providing for administration, enforcement, appeals, penalties for violation of the provisions of this 

code; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Palisade Board of Trustees finds that adoption of this Ordinance is 

necessary to preserve the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town of Palisade. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PALISADE, AS FOLLOWS: 

  

 Section 1. Legislative Declaration.  The Town of Palisade Board of Trustees finds that 

it is important for the safety of the citizens of Town of Palisade to have established a current 

uniform fire code.  Accordingly, it is necessary to adopt and amend the most recent edition of the 

International Fire Code. 

 

 Section 2. Applicability.  This Ordinance shall apply throughout the Town of Palisade, 

Colorado. 

 

 Section 3. Purpose.  The provisions of this Ordinance have been made with reasonable 

consideration of, and in accordance with, the public health, safety, morals and general welfare of 

the public, and the safety, protection, and sanitation of such dwellings, buildings, and structures.  

 

  



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 2 of 12 

 

 

 

 Section 4.   That Article XI of Chapter 18 of the Palisade Municipal Code is hereby 

repealed and reenacted to read as follows: 

 

ARTICLE XI 

 

International Fire Code 

 

Sec. 18-241. Adopted by reference.   

 

(a) The International Fire Code, 2024 Edition, as published by the International Code 

Council, Inc., together with amendments set forth below (hereafter “IFC” or 

“International Fire Code”) is hereby adopted to for regulating and governing the 

safeguarding of life and property from fire and explosion hazards arising from the 

storage, handling and use of hazardous substances, materials and providing for the 

issuance of permits for hazardous uses or operations for buildings, structures and 

land within the jurisdiction. At least one copy of the International Fire Code, and 

the appendices thereto, shall be kept on file at Palisade Town.  Copies of the IFC 

and appendices shall be available for sale to the public at a moderate price, as 

required by C.R.S. §31-16-206. 

 

(b) The following chapters of the Appendix of the International Fire Code, 2024 

Edition, are adopted: 

 

(1) Chapter B, Fire-Flow Requirements for Buildings 

 

(2) Chapter C, Fire Hydrant Locations and Distribution 

 

(3) Chapter D, Fire Apparatus Access Roads 

 

(4) Chapter F, Hazard Ranking 

 

(5) Chapter H, Hazardous Materials Management Plan (HMMP) and Hazardous 

Materials Inventory Statement (HMIS) Instructions 

 

(6) Chapter I, Fire Protection Systems – Noncompliant Conditions 

 

(7) No other appendices of the IFC are adopted 

Sec. 18-242. Amendments.   

 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 3 of 12 

 

 

 

 The International Fire Code is hereby amended and changed in the following 

respects: 

 

Section 101 Scope and General Requirements. Section 101 is amended as follows: 

Section 101.1 whenever the word “jurisdiction” is used in the International Fire 

Code, it shall be held to mean the Palisade Fire Department, Mesa County, 

Colorado. 

 

Section 105.1.1 Required operational permits. Section 105.5.16 is amended as follows: 

Operational permits are valid for three years from the date of issue for Explosives.  

 

Hazardous Materials, HPM Facilities and Storage of scrap tires and tire products 

permits are required for new and existing operations.  

 

All other permits are valid only for each event or season. 

 

Operational permits are required for the following:  

 

Operational Permits:                                               Code Section 

                        Amusement buildings**    105.5.3           

Carnivals and fairs **      105.5.5 

Exhibit and trade shows**    105.5.15 

Emergency Responder Communication  

Coverage system     105.6.5 

Fireworks retail sales **    105.5.16 

Explosives **      105.5.16 

Pyrotechnic special effects material**  105.5.16 & 105.5.44 

                        Hazardous Materials**    105.5.22 

HPM Facilities**     105.5.23                                             

Open Burning *   (combined) **   Mesa County Public Health 

Lithium Batteries*     Town of Palisade, Mesa County  

Mobile Food Preparation Vehicles   105.5.34 

                        Storage of scrap tires and tire byproducts **  105.5.50 

  Temporary Membrane Structures, 

  Special Events Structures and tents   105.5.51 

                        

* A permit shall be required for the “burn season” as outlined in the Mesa County 

Open Burning Control Regulations. Lithium Batteries permits will be issued 

through the appropriate AHJ Building Department.  

 

Section 105.6.6. Energy storage systems shall be amended to read. A Construction permit 

is required to install energy storage system shall be through the proper AHJ Building 

Department Building Official for permitting and inspections.  

 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 4 of 12 

 

 

 

Section 105.6.10 Fuel Cell power Systems shall be amended to read. A Construction 

permit is required to install stationary fuel cell power systems shall be permitted through 

and inspected by the proper AHJ Building Department officials. 

 

Section 105.6.21 Solar photovoltaic power systems shall be amended to read.   

Construction permits that are required to install or modify solar photovoltaic system, 

shall be through the proper AHJ Building Department Building Official for permitting 

and inspections. 

 

 Section 105.5.36 OPEN Burning the language is DELETED and shall   

                        read as follows: 

 

Permits for bonfires and open burning shall be secured through Mesa County Public 

Health Department.  Such permits shall adhere to all applicable fire codes and 

ordinances and the Colorado Air Quality Control Act, C.R.S. 1973, section 25-7-

128 and the Mesa County Open Burning Control Regulation. 

 

Permits for bonfires shall be secured through the Palisade Fire Department’s Office 

of the Fire Chief.  Such permits shall adhere to all applicable fire codes and 

ordinances and the Colorado Air Quality Control Act, C.R.S. 1973, section 25-7-

128 and the Mesa County Open Burning Control Regulation. 

 

 

Section 105.5.51 Amend Section 105.5.51 to read as follows: 

 

Section 105.5.51 Temporary membrane structures, special event structures and tents.  

 

An operational permit is required    to operate an air-supported temporary structure, 

a temporary special event structure, or a tent having an individual or contiguous 

area more than 2400 square feet. 

 

 Exception 1. Tents used exclusively for recreational camping purposes. 

 

Exception 2. Funeral tents and curtains, or extensions attached thereto, when used 

for funeral services. 

 

Exception 3. Temporary membrane structures and tents utilized for the purposes 

of retail fireworks sales, special amusement buildings or outdoor assembly events 

such as a circus, carnival, tent show, theater, skating rink, dance hall or other similar 

use shall require an operational permit when the area exceeds 400 square feet. 

 

Exception 4. Mobile stages. 

 

Section 105.6.22. Amend Section 105.6.22 to add exception:  

 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 5 of 12 

 

 

 

Exception: Mobile stages  

 

Section 105.6.25. Amend Section 105.6.25 to read as follows:  

 

105.6.25 Temporary membrane structures, special event structures and tents. 

A construction permit is required to operate an air-supported temporary membrane 

structure, a temporary stage canopy, or a tent having an individual or contiguous 

area in excess of 2400 square feet.  

 

Exception 1: Tents used exclusively for recreational camping purposes.  

 

Exception 2: Funeral tents and curtains, or extensions attached thereto, when used 

for funeral services.  

 

Exception 3: Temporary membrane structures, temporary special event structures 

and tents utilized for the purposes of retail fireworks sales, special amusement 

buildings or outdoor assembly events such as a circus, carnival, theater, dance hall 

or other similar use shall require an operational permit when the area exceeds 400 

square feet. 

 

Exception 4: Mobile stages 

 

Section 105.6 Required construction permits. Section 105.6 is amended as 

follows: 

 

Construction Permits:                                                           Code Section 

                        Plan Review Fees**     

                         

                        Automatic fire-extinguishing systems**    105.6.1 

Fire Sprinkler Systems 

Hood extinguishing Systems 

Fire pumps and related equipment **    105.6.8 

Fire alarm and detection systems and related   105.6.7 

equipment**          

Installation/removal of aboveground storage   105.6.9  

 tanks or underground storage tanks**                                    

Flammable and combustible liquids **   105.6.9 

LP gas**         105.6.16 

Fuel Cell Power Systems*     105.6.10 

Gates and Barricades Across Fire Apparatus Access Roads 105.6.12 

 

**Permit fees and rates shall be as established by separate resolutions by the Board 

of Directors of the Town of Palisade 

 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 6 of 12 

 

 

 

*Fuel Cell Power Systems Permits shall be Permitted through appropriate AHJ 

Build officials. This will include permitting and inspections. 

 

Section 112 Appeals The language is DELETED and shall be replaced as follows; 

                          

Whenever the Chief of the Fire Department disapproves an application or refuses 

to grant a permit applied for, or when it is claimed that the provisions of the Code 

do not apply or that the true intent and meaning of the Code have been misconstrued 

or wrongly interpreted, the applicant may appeal the decision of the Chief of the 

Fire Department to the Palisade Board of Trustees. Such appeal shall be perfected 

by filing with the Chief of the Fire Department a written appeal along with a fee of 

$100 within 30 days from the date of the decision appealed. 

 

Section 113.4 Violation penalties. The language of section 113.4 is DELETED and   

                         shall read as follows: 

 

Section 113.4 Violation penalties. 

 

(a) Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to comply with 

any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work 

in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the code 

official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions of this code, shall be 

guilty of a misdemeanor, or punishable pursuant to 32-1-1002 (3) (d), C.R.S., as 

amended or in the City of Palisade shall be guilty of a Class B Municipal offense 

under Chapter 15.50 of the Palisade Municipal Code, punishable by a fine of not 

more than $500.00 dollars or by imprisonment not exceeding six months, or both a 

fine and imprisonment. Each day that a violation continues after due notice has 

been served shall be deemed a separate offense. 

 

(b) The application of the above penalties shall not be held to prevent the enforced 

removal of prohibited conditions. 

 

Section 114.4 The language of 111.4 is DELETED and shall read as follows:  

 

Section 114.4 Failure to Comply: 

 

(a) Any person who violates any of the provisions of this code or ordinances hereby 

adopted or fails to comply therewith, or "who violates or fails to comply with an 

order made there under, or who builds in violation of any detailed statement of 

specifications or plans submitted and approved there under, or certificate, or permit 

issued there under, and from which no appeal has been taken, or who fails to comply 

with such an order by a court of  competent jurisdiction, within the time fixed 

herein, shall severely, for each and every such  violation and noncompliance, 

respectively, be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable pursuant to Section 32-1-1002 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 7 of 12 

 

 

 

(3)(2), C.R.S., as amended. The imposition of one penalty for any violation shall 

not excuse the violation or permit it to continue; and all such persons shall be 

required to correct or remedy such violations within a reasonable time; and when 

not otherwise specified, each day that prohibited conditions are maintained shall 

constitute a separate offense. 

 

(b) The application of the above penalty shall not be held to prevent the enforced 

removal of prohibited conditions. 
(c) Any person who shall continue any work after having been served with a stop work 

order except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition shall be subject to the general penalties provided in Chapter 1 
Article IV, Sections 1-82 and 1-83 of the Town of Palisade Municipal Code. 

 

Section 4104.2. Add a new section to read as Follows:  

4104.2. Egress from buildings. Barbecues shall not be used or stored in or near 

stairwells, corridors or other areas that are intended to be used as a means of egress 

or considered an interior living space. 

                    

Mobile Food Preparation Vehicles shall follow Section 4106 

               

Section 503.1 Address identification This is AMENDED by adding the following: 

 

All residential house numbers shall be located on the portion of the residence which 

projects nearest to the street. In cases where a structure is built far enough from the 

roadway that it is impossible to place numbers that are legible from the roadway, a 

sign post placed at the intersection of the roadway and driveway denoting the 

address of the structure may be required by the Fire Chief. 

 

Address and building numbers shall be a minimum of 12 inches high with a 

minimum stroke width of two inches of a contrasting color from the building for 

commercial properties as required by the Fire Chief on other buildings and 

structures, located within the Fire Department boundary, which cannot be readily 

identified from access roadways or streets.  

 

Section 503.1.1. Add a new exception to read as follows: 

Exceptions: 

1. When all buildings are equipped throughout with approved automatic sprinkler 

installed in accordance with NFPA 13, NFPA 13R, or NFPA 13D or’ IRC 

P2904 the fire code official is authorized to allow a dead- end fire apparatus 

road to extend to 300 feet before a turnaround is required. 

 

Section 901.4.3. Add a new Section 901.4.3 to read as follows: 

 

901.4.3 Relocations and additions to fire sprinkler and fire alarm systems in existing 

facilities.  



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 8 of 12 

 

 

 

Any addition or remodeling to existing commercial fire sprinkler systems that 

involve 20 sprinkler heads or less, or fire alarm systems that involve 5 devices or 

less, will not require a permit when approved by the fire code official via a scope 

of work letter review process. The review letter process shall comply with the 

guidance document established and provided by the Palisade Fire Department. 

 

Section 903.2 Where Required.  This is AMENDED by adding the following sentence: 

 

All buildings located in the Town of Palisade area which exceed 2,000 square feet 

shall be provided throughout with an automatic fire sprinkler system unless 

otherwise approved by the Fire Chief and/or the Fire Code Official. 

 

Section 903.3.1.3   NFPA 13D sprinkler systems This is hereby AMENDED to  

read as follows: 

              

Where domestic water is provided by a public water system, any required 13D  

              system must be supplied by the public water system. The water tap must be  

              adequate to supply the hydraulic demand of the fire sprinkler system. 

           

Automatic sprinkler systems installed in one- and two-family dwellings shall be 

installed throughout in accordance with NFPA 13D. Where NFPA 13D systems are 

installed, they shall be designed and operate in the following manner: 

 

(A) All water flow activations shall be capable of sounding an interior audible alarm 

notifying all occupants simultaneously. 

 

(B) All water flow activations shall be capable of activating an exterior 

audible/visual alarm.  This alarm shall be located so as to be visible from the nearest 

fire department access road. 

 

(C) The light used shall be a strobe light producing at least 110-185 candela.  

 

 (D) Where public water service cannot provide required flows for NFPA    

       13D systems the following design criteria shall be used: 

 

(1) Water supply storage capacity shall be the minimum required by NFPA 

13D plus an additional amount based upon the expected response time 

of the fire department, not to exceed a 20-minute response time. 

        

Section 903.3.7 Fire department connections.  Section 903.3.7 is amended by the   

addition of the following: 

 

Fire department connections must be located within 150 feet of the 

nearest fire hydrant unless waived by the Fire Chief. 

 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 9 of 12 

 

 

 

Section 907.1.2 Fire alarm shop drawings. The following shall be added     

           

907.1.2   System designers shall have a NICET Level III certification or 

equivalent. 

 

           907.1.3 New systems shall be designed with addressable devices. 

Exception: systems which monitor and transmit alarms from automatic fire 

sprinkler systems only. 

 

Section 907.8.4.1 False Alarms: Alarm system malfunctions or malicious false 

alarms.   

               A new section to be ADDED as follows: 

 

             Section 907.8.4.1 

 

Whenever the activation of any fire alarm is due to a malfunction of the system and 

that system has had another malfunction within the same quarter of a calendar year, 

or more than six during any calendar year, the owner and/or operator of the system 

may have violation penalties imposed in accordance with the Town of Palisade’s 

Fee Schedule and Section 110.4.. 

 

 Section 907.8.4.1 

 

It is the responsibility of the owner or operator of an alarm system to police the 

improper use of the system, such as the intentional activating of a false alarm or the 

intentional activation of a smoke or heat detector to produce a false alarm. After 

three such activations within the same quarter of a calendar year from the same fire 

alarm system, or more than six during any calendar year violation penalties may be 

imposed in accordance with Section 110.4. 

 

 Section 907.8.4.2 

 

Whenever the Fire Chief cannot determine how a false alarm was activated and 

three such unexplained alarms occur within the same calendar year quarter effective 

with the fourth and subsequent alarms, or alarms exceeding six during any calendar 

year, penalties shall become effective with the seventh and subsequent alarms in 

accordance with Section 110.4. 

 

Section 907.8.4.3  

A new fire alarm system shall be allowed 30 days to become stabilized before this 

false alarm section will be applied. 

 

Section 1006. Number of Exits and Exit Access doorways: Section 1006 is amended 

by adding the following:  

 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 10 of 12 

 

 

 

Section 1006.2.2.7 Outdoor Patios within the Town limits of Palisade, Colorado.    

All Group A-2 Assembly and other occupancies that have a fenced or enclosed 

outdoor patio shall have an alarmed second exit equipped with panic hardware 

directly to the exterior.  

 

  Section 1101.1. Amend Section 1101.1 to read as follows: 

1101.1 Scope. The provisions of this chapter shall apply to existing buildings 

constructed prior to this code and the fire code official is authorized to initiate its 

use when buildings are undergoing an addition or alteration utilizing the 

Alterations – Level 3 Method (Chapter 13) of the International Existing Building 

Code (2024 Edition). This chapter’s use is authorized for Prescriptive and 

Performance Compliance Methods when work equivalent to an Alterations- Level 

3 Method have been achieved.  

 

The fire code official is authorized to apply this chapter when any building or 

portion of a building is undergoing a change of occupancy in accordance with the 

International Building Code (2024 Edition) or International Existing Building 

Code (2024 Edition) 

 

Official acceptance and interpretation of the above methods as it relates to the 

applicability of Chapter 11 shall be determined by the fire code official.  

 

Exception 1: This chapter does not apply to detached one-and-two-family 

dwellings and multiple single-family dwellings (townhouses) governed by 

the International Residential Code. 

 

Exception 2: The fire code official is authorized when executive approval 

from the Fire Chief is granted to require existing buildings to be in 

compliance with Section 1103.2 [Emergency Responder Radio Coverage] 

at any time if deemed a distinct hazard without the structure engaging in 

an addition, alteration or change of use.  

 

 

Appendix B  

Fire-Flow Requirements for Buildings  

 

Section B103.4. Add New Section B103.4 to read as follows:  

 

B103.4 Alternative Methods. In areas which are mostly developed where not more than 

two buildable lots are created (at the same time) after the effective date hereof, and the 

existing water lines and fire flow are inadequate in the area, the Fire Chief may allow a 

residential structure to be built if equipped with an approved fire sprinkler system and if 

he determined that water upgrades would be impractical. In such event, the Fire Chief 

shall record a memorandum indicating the fire protection measures used and the facts 

concerning the inadequate water lines. 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C  

Fire Hydrant Locations and Distribution 

 

Section C103.4. The following shall be ADDED to existing wording of this section: 

 

“In all subdivisions, commercial areas, industrial parks and where required by the 

Fire Chief fire hydrants shall be located on the corner of a street intersection, either 

between the curb and sidewalk or behind the sidewalk where it is adjacent to the 

street curbs.   

 

The following new section is added to Appendix C 

 

Section C 103.5 Fire Hydrants. 

 

“Fire hydrant pumper connections shall be equipped with a five-inch non-threaded 

sexless connection (commonly referred to as Storz) and metal cap which can be 

removed by a standard pentagon nut hydrant wrench.  Pumper connections shall 

face the street or as directed by the Fire Chief.” 

 

 

 Section 5.   Repeal.  Any ordinance of the Town of Palisade, or part thereof, whose 

provisions are in conflict with this ordinance, including but limited to, Article XI of Chapter 18 of 

the Palisade Municipal Code is hereby repealed.  Provided, however, this ordinance shall not affect 

the construction of buildings for which permits were issued prior to the effective date of this 

ordinance.  All buildings now under construction pursuant to existing permits shall be constructed 

in conformance with the fire code applicable at the time of issuance of such permit.  Provided 

further however, no construction authorized by an existing permit shall be altered without 

complying with the newly adopted fire code.  The adoption of this ordinance shall not in any way 

prevent the prosecution of violations of any previous ordinance adopting previous fire code which 

occurred prior to the effective date of this ordinance.  Where this ordinance and the code adopted 

by reference herein are in conflict with other resolutions or ordinances of the Town of Palisade, 

Colorado, the more restrictive provision shall apply. 

 

 Section 6.    Severability.  Each section of this ordinance is an independent section and 

the holding of any section or part thereof to be unconstitutional, void or ineffective for any cause 

shall not be deemed to affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section or part thereof.  

 

 Section 7.    Public Notice.  Pursuant to Section 31-16-203, C.R.S., as amended, a public 

notice shall be published twice in a newspaper of general circulation within the Town, once at least 

fifteen (15) days preceding a public hearing, and once at least eight (8) days preceding the public 

hearing.  The notice shall state the time and place of the hearing, shall state that copies of the 

primary code to be considered for adoption are on file with the Town Clerk and are open to public 

inspection, shall contain a description deemed sufficient to give notice to interested persons of the 



Town of Palisade, Colorado  

Ordinance No. 2026-01 

Page 12 of 12 

 

 

 

purpose of the primary code, the subject matters of said code and the name and address of the 

agency by which it has been enacted.  The public hearing on the adoption of this ordinance is 

hereby set for February 10, 2026. 

 

 This ordinance shall be in full force and effect following adoption and approval by the 

Board of Trustees and thirty (30) days following the publication of the within ordinance.  

 

 INTRODUCED, READ, AND PUBLIC NOTICE ORDERED PUBLISHED, at a regular 

meeting of the Palisade Board of Trustees, on January 13, 2026. 

 

Public Notice Publication Dates: 

 

January 24, 2026 

January 31, 2026 

 

 

 INTRODUCED A SECOND TIME at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the 

Town of Palisade, Colorado, at a public hearing held on February 10, 2026, PASSED, ADOPTED, 

AND ORDERED PUBLISHED PURSUANT TO LAW. 

 

       TOWN OF PALISADE, COLORADO 

 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

       Greg Mikolai, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Keli Frasier, CMC 

Town Clerk 



PALISADE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date: February 10, 2026 

 

Presented By:  Administration – Community Development 

   Planning Commission - PAV 

 

Re: RESOLUTION 2026-03 - Placemaking in Roundabout Grant with the 

State 250/150 Celebration  

 

 

SUBJECT: 

 

CDOT is constructing a roundabout at a high-traffic entrance into Town.  This roundabout can host 

“placemaking” – this is signage, history, art, landscape…..  

 

Placemaking creates a greeting and message that travelers have entered Town.  

 

This grant is part of the State 250/150 celebration this year.  

The grant request will be for $85,000 to establish a design and construct the chosen sign & possible 

art sculpture.   

 

Direction: 

 

Approve RESOLUTION 2026-03 Giving Direction to the Town Manager to submit a grant for 

“placemaking” in the roundabout for $85,000, with the match being in-kind of the Town’s current 

financial commitment to this project, including bike lane delineators, landscape, and street lights in 

the roundabout. 



TOWN OF PALISADE, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-03 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A GRANT FROM THE 

COLORADO 150 COMMISSION’S COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM FOR THE 

SESQUICENTENNIAL, SEMIQUINCENTENNIAL, SESQUISEMIQUINCENTENNIAL 

CELEBRATION. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Palisade is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, 

and therefore an eligible applicant for a grant awarded; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Palisade has submitted a Grant Application for the Placemaking 

Sign and Art at the roundabout entrance, requesting a total award of $85,000 (eighty-five thousand), 

with the Town contributing in-kind of bicycle delineators, streetlights, and landscaping ($300,000 

in-kind match); and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Palisade supports the completion of the project if a grant is awarded. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PALISADE BOARD OF TRUSTEES THAT: 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings by the Palisade Board of 

Trustees. 

Section 2. The Palisade Board of Trustees strongly supports the Grant Application. 

Section 4. If the grant is awarded, the Palisade Board of Trustees strongly supports the 

completion of the placemaking project. 

Section 5. The Palisade Board of Trustees, of the Town of Palisade, authorizes the 

expenditure of funds necessary to meet the terms and obligations of any grant 

awarded pursuant to a Grant Agreement. 

Section 6. The project is owned by the Town of Palisade and will be owned and maintained 

by the Town. The Town will appropriate funds for maintenance annually. 

Section 7. If a grant is awarded, the Palisade Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the  

Mayor or Town Administrator to sign a Grant Agreement. The effective date 

of this Resolution is the date passed and approved below. 

RESOLVED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 10th day of February 2026. 

TOWN OF PALISADE, COLORADO 

________________________________ 

Greg Mikolai, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Keli Frasier, CMC 

Town Clerk 


	Agenda: Board of Trustees 02.10.2026
	Town Manager Report 2.10.2026
	2025 Events & Festivals Visitor Data

	Consent Agenda Items Have Been Moved
	PUBLIC HEARING I
	Ordinance 2026-01 - Adoption of International Fire Code
	Public Notice: Ordinance 2026-01 - Adoption of International Fire Code
	Ordinance 2026-01

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution 2026 - Roundabout Grant
	Resolution 2026-03 




